PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES May 12, 2025

The Plan Commission met on the above date in the Council Chambers.

The following members were present: Mayor Stocks, Talaga, Kneser, Lampe, Krueger, Zirbes, and Beyer. Absent: Alderperson Blanke.

Also in attendance: Mason Becker, Duane & Darlene Duddeck, Jessica & Nick Schmidt, Duane & Deborah Strauss, and Todd Blank.

- 1. Call to order (4:34pm Mayor Stocks)
- 2. Approval of Minutes
 - A. Site Plan Review minutes April 28, 2025

Motion to approve the Site Plan Review minutes was made by Lampe and seconded by Krueger, passed on unanimous voice vote.

B. Plan Commission minutes April 28, 2025

Motion to approve Plan Commission minutes was made by Beyer and seconded by Krueger, passed on unanimous voice vote.

- 3. Business
 - A. Public Hearing: 830 West Street—request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an addition to an Accessory Dwelling Unit exceeding 10% maximum accessory building coverage under Section §550-56C(1)(b)[2]

A letter from Duane and Darlene Duddeck of 834 West Street was presented in the packets. There being no further comments, the public hearing was closed.

B. Review and take action: 830 West Street- request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an addition to an Accessory Dwelling Unit exceeding 10% maximum accessory building coverage under Section §550-56C(1)(b)[2]

Brian Zirbes presented the request for a CUP for 830 West Street. The applicants are requesting 4,128 square feet in accessory building coverage whereas the maximum allowed in the district would be 3,833 square feet.

Motion to approve with no conditions was made by Talaga, seconded by Kneser and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

- C. Public Hearing: 830 West Street request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a combination of accessory structures exceeding a total of 1,000 square feet under Section §550-56C(1)(b)[1]
 - A letter from Duane and Darlene Duddeck of 834 West Street was presented in the packets. There being no further comments, the public hearing was closed.
- D. Review and take action: 830 West Street—request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a combination of accessory structures exceeding a total of 1,000 square feet under Section §550-56C(1)(b)[1]

Brian Zirbes presented the request for a CUP for 830 West Street. The applicants are requesting to exceed 1,000 square feet of accessory structures. There's an existing barn that will remain on the property as well as a shed that will be removed. With the new shed added in, the total square feet of accessory structures will be 4,128 square feet.

Motion to approve with no conditions was made by Lampe, seconded by Krueger and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

E. Public Hearing: 830 West Street—request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an addition to an Accessory Dwelling Unit exceeding the maximum height of 15 feet for an accessory structure under Section §550-83C

A letter from Duane and Darlene Duddeck of 834 West Street was presented in the packets. There being no further comments, the public hearing was closed.

F. Review and take action: 830 West Street—request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an addition to an Accessory Dwelling Unit exceeding the maximum height of 15 feet for an accessory structure under Section §550-83C

Brian Zirbes presented the request for a CUP for 830 West Street. The applicants are requesting to build a structure that will not exceed 24 feet.

Motion to approve with the condition that the maximum height shall be no more than 24 feet was made by Krueger, seconded by Lampe and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

G. Review and take action: N8505 Highland Road Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM)

Brian Zirbes presented the request for a CSM for this property within the 3-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction. It would be a 1.2 acre lot with access to Highland Road. This is in the Airport Approach Protection Zone with an elevation of 968 feet. This note has been added to the CSM. The signature page needs to be corrected on the CSM.

Motion to approve with the condition that the signature page be corrected for the Mayor and Clerk to sign was made by Lampe, seconded by Beyer and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

H. Review and take action: N886 Barry Road Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) Review
Brian Zirbes presented the request for a CSM for this property within the 3-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction.
It would be a 5.1 acre lot for a new home. This is not in the Airport Approach Protection Zone The signature page needs to be corrected on the CSM.

Motion to approve with the condition that the signature page be corrected for the Mayor and Clerk to sign was made by Beyer, seconded by Lampe and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

I. Review public hearing comments and make recommendation to Common Council: Edge Field Rezoning
Brian Zirbes summarized this. This is to rezone the Edge Field Plat to rezone 14 twin home lots from singlefamily to two-family. A condition of the approval would be that the final plat has to be approved by the
Common Council.

Motion to make a positive recommendation to Council with the condition that the final plat be approved by the Common Council was made by Krueger, seconded by Kneser and passed on a unanimous voice vote.

J. Review and take action: Enclave Subdivision Final Plat

Brian Zirbes summarized this. Jefferson County has no objection to the Enclave Subdivision final plat. Bielinski has not yet received communication from the Wisconsin Department of Administration. Two conditions for this item would be that the applicant shall obtain any required erosion control and stormwater permits and that any further corrections from the Wisconsin Department of Administration shall be made prior to recording of the final plat. Andrew Beyer added that the first page of the final plat has some details on the vision corner easement. Another condition should be that verbiage and detail be removed as it is inconsistent with current zoning for the City of Watertown vision triangle.

Motion was made and seconded to approve with the conditions that the applicant shall obtain any required erosion control and stormwater permits; any further corrections from the Wisconsin Department of Administration shall be made prior to recording of the final plat; and the verbiage and detail on the first page of the final plat regarding the vision corner easement be removed. Motion passed on a unanimous voice vote.

K. Initial Review and Schedule Public Hearing: Text Amendments to Chapter 545 Subdivision of Land Brian Zirbes stated that there are some recommended amendments Chapter 545 Subdivision of Land. The first amendment is regarding Parkland Fees in situations where parkland is not dedicated and a fee in lieu of dedication is required. The ordinance currently requires these fees to be paid at the time of the building permit issuance. However, in instances where some time has passed, it is not clear whether the fees have been collected, or the land has been dedicated. The recommendation would be the fee being collected at the time of the land division or plat approval. The Recreation Facilities Fee would continue to be collected at the time of building permit issuance. The other recommendation for amendment is to utilize the expanded use of certified survey maps (CSMs) that State Statutes allow the city to do. Currently a CSM can only have up to 4 lots. The expanded use would allow multifamily lots and up to 12 lots to be created via CSM or 8 lots for commercial and industrial development. The request for this meeting is to set the public hearing date at the Common Council for June 3, 2025.

Motion to approve was made by Krueger, seconded by Talaga and passed on a unanimous voice.

L. Initial Review and Schedule Public Hearing: Text Amendments to Chapter 550-150 Community Entry Corridor Overlay Zoning District

Brian Zirbes stated this is a correction to the amendments made last year to this section. The introductory paragraph had an error. Per the City Attorney this must go through the same amendment process to make this correction. The request for this meeting is to set the public hearing date at the Common Council for June 3, 2025.

Motion to approve was made by Lampe, seconded by Kneser and passed on a unanimous voice.

4. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn was made by Krueger and seconded by Kneser and passed on a unanimous voice vote. (4:54pm)

All materials discussed at this meeting can be found at:

https://core-docs.s3.us-east-

> Respectfully Submitted, Mayor Robert Stocks